ESTABLISHMENT COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 19 April 2016

Minutes of the meeting of the Establishment Committee held at the Guildhall EC2 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:

Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines Sylvia Moys

(Chairman) Deputy Joyce Nash
Edward Lord (Deputy Chairman) Barbara Newman
Nigel Challis Deputy Richard Regan

Deputy Billy Dove Deputy Elizabeth Rogula Alderman Peter Estlin Angela Starling

Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark Jeremy Mayhew

Officers:

John Barradell - Town Clerk and Chief Executive

Simon Murrells - Assistant Town Clerk

Christopher Braithwaite - Town Clerk's Department
Caroline Al-Beyerty - Chamberlain's Department
Chrissie Morgan - Director of Human Resources
Janet Fortune - Human Resources Department
Tracey Jansen - Human Resources Department
Damian Nussbaum - Director of Economic Development

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Randall Anderson, Deputy Kevin Everett, Wendy Mead and Philip Woodhouse.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 10 March 2016 be approved as an accurate record.

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS REPORT

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk which provided details of outstanding actions from previous meetings.

RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the report.

5. MINUTES OF THE JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

RESOLVED – That the public minutes and summary of the meeting of the Joint Consultative Committee held on 10 March 2016 be noted.

6. **RESOLUTION FROM FINANCE COMMITTEE**

The Committee considered a resolution from the Finance Committee which set out the Finance Committee's concerns that there may be a potential "bow wave" risk regarding recruitment and retention due to a lack of pay rises for local government employees.

Members commented that the Establishment Committee did act to ensure that, where specific cases were brought to their attention, Market Forces Supplements were paid to staff whose pay was demonstrably below the market rate for their role. The Committee also noted that the next item for consideration on the agenda was regarding the revising of the Pay and Reward structure of the Corporation to ensure that it was modernised.

RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the resolution from the Finance Committee.

7. REFRESHING THE PAY AND REWARD STRATEGY FOR THE CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Human Resources which provided the Committee with information regarding the proposals to refresh the reward and recognition approach within the Corporation.

The Committee commented that it welcomed this work being undertaken and agreed that it was a vital area for the Committee to address. Members particularly noted the need, in the short term, to reassess the approach to Market Forces Supplements (MFSs) to allow these to be awarded more quickly where necessary, to avoid unnecessary delays to recruitment or the risk of losing key members of staff.

The Committee agreed that a more responsive approach to MFSs would be very beneficial, and agreed that this could be achieved by increasing the threshold for approval of MFSs by the Director of Human Resources, adding a threshold for which approval of MFSs could be delegated to the Town Clerk (in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Establishment Committee) and thereby increasing the threshold at which approval was required to be sought at a meeting of the Establishment Committee.

The Committee indicated that it would be likely to be appropriate for the thresholds to be based on the percentage increase in salary that proposed MFSs constituted, rather than being based on the financial value of the MFS. The Committee indicated that the following threshold may be appropriate:

- MFS of up to 15% of salary approval by the Director of Human Resources:
- MFS of between 15% and 25% of salary approval by the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Establishment Committee;

- MFS of over 25% of salary – approval by the Establishment Committee.

The Committee requested that the Director of Human Resources provide the Committee with a report setting out the implications of these proposals.

RESOLVED – That the Committee:

- a) notes the report;
- b) requests that the Director of Human Resources provide a report to the Committee setting out proposals for revisions to the procedure for the approval of Market Forces Supplements.

8. TOWN CLERK'S BUSINESS PLAN 2016/17

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk which set out the Town Clerk's Departmental Business Plan 2016/17.

Members commented that the report only provided those risks which were on the Corporate Risk Register, and did not provide the full Departmental Risk Register. The Committee agreed that the Departmental Risk Register should be provided to the Committee following the meeting.

A Member commented that the Key Performance Indicators within the Business Plan indicated a relatively narrow focus upon specific targets, rather than using more strategic measures and metrics (such as employee satisfaction). The Town Clerk advised that it was hoped that the Member survey could assist in providing some such metrics. The Town Clerk also advised that he was intending to host a briefing for Members in early June 2016 to discuss improving the strategic framework of the organisation around people, place and prosperity, and ensuring that Business Plans were linked to these priorities.

Members commented that the format of the Business Plan could be improved to be focused upon the issues which would be of concern to Members. The Town Clerk explained that the format would be reviewed to ensure that the Business Plans were useful for both Members and Officers, as that was not currently the case. The Town Clerk advised that Members would be consulted as part of this process.

The Town Clerk also updated Members on the work to improve the IT Service Provision for the Corporation and the Police.

RESOLVED – That the Committee approves the Town Clerk's Departmental Business Plan 2016/17.

9. COMPTROLLER AND CITY SOLICITOR'S BUSINESS PLAN 2016/17

The Committee considered a report of the Comptroller and City Solicitor which set out his Departmental Business Plan for 2016/17.

A Member commented that it would have been beneficial for the Risk Register to be presented in the full format, rather than in the summary format presented within the report.

RESOLVED – that the Committee approves the Comptroller and City Solicitor's Departmental Business Plan 2016-2019.

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT There were no urgent items.

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item	Paragraph
13, 16, 22	3
14, 20	1, 3
15	4
17	1, 2
21	1
23	1, 2, 4

13. **NON-PUBLIC MINUTES**

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2016 were approved.

14. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS REPORT

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk which provided details of non-public outstanding actions from previous meetings.

RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the report.

15. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

The non-public minutes of the meeting of the Joint Consultative Committee held on 10 March 2016 were noted.

16. RESOLUTION FROM CORPORATE ASSET SUB-COMMITTEE

The Sub-Committee considered a resolution from the meeting of the Corporate Asset Sub-Committee on 11 March 2016, regarding recruitment.

17. STAFF RESOURCES IN THE COMPTROLLER AND CITY SOLICITOR'S DEPARTMENT - CONTRACTS AND PROCUREMENT

The Committee noted a joint report of the Chamberlain and the Comptroller and City Solicitor which advised Members of additional resources being sought within the Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department in the area of contracts and procurement.

18. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no items of urgent business.

20. CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES

The confidential minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2016 were approved.

21. DEPARTMENT OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT - SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM CHANGE PROGRAMME

The Town Clerk advised that this report had been withdrawn.

22. REQUEST FOR MARKET FORCES SUPPLEMENT - CHAMBERLAIN'S DEPARTMENT

The Committee considered and approved a report of the Chamberlain which requested approval for a Market Forces Supplement for a post within the Chamberlain's Department.

23. TOWN CLERK'S DEPARTMENT - RESTRUCTURE OF A DIVISION

The Committee noted a report of the Town Clerk which provided the Committee with information regarding a potential restructure of a Division within the Town Clerk's Department.

The meeting closed at 3.00 pm	
Chairman	

Contact Officer: Chris Braithwaite

tel. no.: 020 7332 1427

christopher.braithwaite@cityoflondon.gov.uk